5 Herefordshire
Council

AGENDA

Planning Committee

Date: Wednesday 10 August 2011

Time: 10.00 am

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01432 261885
Email: rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format or language, please call Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services
Officer on 01432 261885 or e-mail rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk in
advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Planning

Committee
Membership
Chairman Councillor PGH Cutter

Vice-Chairman Councillor BA Durkin
Councillor PA Andrews
Councillor AN Bridges
Councillor PJ Edwards
Councillor DW Greenow
Councillor KS Guthrie
Councillor J Hardwick
Councillor JW Hope MBE
Councillor RC Hunt

Councillor Brig P Jones CBE

Councillor JG Lester
Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes
Councillor G Lucas
Councillor Rl Matthews
Councillor FM Norman
Councillor GR Swinford
Councillor PJ Watts
Councillor JD Woodward

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

What is a personal interest?

You have a personal interest in a matter if that
matter affects the well-being or financial position of
you, your relatives or people with whom you have a
close personal association more than it would
affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to
which the matter relates.

A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or
people with whom you have a close personal
association positively or negatively. If you or they
would stand to lose by the decision, you should
also declare it.

You also have a personal interest in a matter if it
relates to any interests, which you must register.

What do | need to do if | have a personal
interest?

You must declare it when you get to the item on the
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest’” or as
soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still
speak and vote unless it is a prejudicial interest.

If a matter affects a body to which you have been
appointed by the authority, or a body exercising
functions of a public nature, you only need declare
the interest if you are going to speak on the matter.

What is a prejudicial interest?

You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if;

a) a member of the public, who knows the
relevant facts, would reasonably think your
personal interest is so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest; and

b) the matter affects your financial interests or
relates to a licensing or regulatory matter;
and

c) the interest does not fall within one of the
exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of
the Code of Conduct.

What do | need to do if | have a prejudicial
interest?

If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw
from the meeting. However, under paragraph 12(2)
of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public
are allowed to make representations, give evidence
or answer questions about that matter, you may
also make representations as if you were a
member of the public. However, you must withdraw
from the meeting once you have made your
representations and before any debate starts.




HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 10 AUGUST 2011

AGENDA
Pages

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence.
2, NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting
in place of a Member of the Committee.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on
the Agenda.

4, MINUTES 1-6
To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2011.

5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements from the Chairman.

6. APPEALS 7-8
To be noted.

7. DMS/111132/F - FIELD, THE LEYS, LYNNE DOWN, MUCH MARCLE, | 9-20
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR8 2NS

Change of use of land from agricultural to a one family traveller site
including siting of one mobile home, touring caravan, shed and new access.

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Date of next site inspection - 30 August 2011

Date of next meeting - 31 August 2011







The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

e Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

¢ Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.

e Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six
years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to
four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a report is
given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on which the officer
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents.

Public Transport Links

e Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately
every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street).

e The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with
Old Eign Hill. The return journey can be made from the same bus stop.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located in the
circular car park at the front of the building. A check will be
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated
the building following which further instructions will be given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the
exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to
collect coats or other personal belongings.

@ Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer

waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA).

%(:9 Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel
environmental label



AGENDA ITEM 4

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Planning Committee held at The
Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford on
Wednesday 20 July 2011 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor PGH Cutter (Chairman)
Councillor BA Durkin (Vice Chairman)

Councillors: PA Andrews, AN Bridges, PJ Edwards, DW Greenow, KS Guthrie,
RB Hamilton, J Hardwick, JW Hope MBE, Brig P Jones CBE, JLV Kenyon,
JG Lester, MD Lloyd-Hayes, G Lucas, Rl Matthews, FM Norman and PJ Watts

28. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors BA Durkin, RC Hunt, GR Swinford and JD
Woodward.

29. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

In accordance with paragraph 4.1.23 of the Council’s Constitution, Councillors RB Hamilton
and JLV Kenyon attended the meeting as substitute members for Councillors BA Durkin and
JD Woodward.

30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made.
31. MINUTES

Councillor Matthews asked for clarification on the advice given by the locum lawyer at the
previous meeting regarding a condition proposed by the Local Ward member in her opening
remarks in respect of an application at Haygrove Farm. The locum lawyer advised Members
that the condition would not be enforceable and did therefore not meet the government
criteria.

In response to a further question from Councillor PJ Watts regarding condition 3 of the
resolution in respect of the same application, the Locum Lawyer advised that the condition
was necessary and met the requirements of the afore mentioned national guidance as well
as national planning policy PPS24.

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2011 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

32. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman thanked Members for attending the site inspection that took place on the 19
July.

33. APPEALS

In response to a question, the Development Manager advised Members that there was
currently no decision in respect of the application at Braintree Lodge.




34.

The Planning Committee noted the report.

DMS/110995/F - 48 HAMPTON PARK ROAD, HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1
1TH

The Principal Planning Officer gave a presentation on the application and updates /
additional representations received following the publication of the agenda were
provided; the schedule of committee updates is appended to these minutes. He also
advised Members that he recommended that an additional two conditions be added to
the recommendation to restrict hours of construction and to address slab levels.

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr Rees spoke in objection to the
application.

In accordance with paragraph 4.8.2.2 of the Council’s Constitution, Councillors JLV
Kenyon and MD Lloyd-Hayes, two of the local ward members, commented on a number
of issues, including:

e Hampton Grange was a care home for dementia sufferers

¢ Not aware of any parking issues surrounding the home

¢ Note the concerns regarding the loss of open space but there is open space at
the back of the home overlooking the river.

e The proposal will give the residents the opportunity to look out over the river or at
the impressive cedar tree.

e Local Members previously objected to apartments on the site due to the increase
in traffic

e Natural England, the conservation manager, the ecology manager, and the traffic

manager do not object to the application.

The proposed development is in keeping with the existing building.

The neighbouring dwellings are some distance away fro the application site.

No complaints received from local residents regarding the home.

Statistics prove that there will be an increase in dementia sufferers throughout

the County.

e The Council has a duty of care in respect of the elderly within the County.

In response to a question, the Principal Planning Officer advised that the cooking
facilities would be located against the western elevation. He suggested that Members
may consider it relevant to include a condition seeking details of the extraction
equipment prior to development. He added that the proposed bin store would be
covered; that there had been no objections from the Council’s Environmental Health
Team; and that existing issues of noise should be addressed through the Environmental
Protection Team and not through the planning process.

Members discussed the application and felt that the Council had a duty of care towards
the elderly and the mentally infirm. They did however note the concerns of the local
residents and felt that these concerns could be addressed through suitable conditions.
They requested that additional conditions be incorporated into the resolution to address
landscaping; the provision of a noise attenuation scheme for the bin store; and additional
secure cycle storage.

Members noted their disappointment at the loss of open space through the development
but felt that there was good reason in this case. They also noted that there was still
substantial open space overlooking the river that residents could use.



The Locum Lawyer advised Members that the application fell within the conservation
area. He added that Members should pay special attention to the effect the application
would have on the character and appearance of the conservation area.

In response to a question the Principal Planning Officer confirmed that 20 metres of
hedgerow would have to be removed to achieve the required visibility on the junction.

In response to a further question regarding the hours of construction, the Principal

Planning Officer confirmed that weekend hours would be restricted to 8am to 1pm on a

Saturday with no working permitted on a Sunday.

Councillors Kenyon and Lloyd-Hayes were given the opportunity to close the debate in

accordance with the Council’'s Constitution. They reiterated their opening remarks and

requested that the Committee approve the application.

RESOLVED

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

1. A01 Time limit for commencement (full permission)

2. B03 Amended plans

3. B07 Section 106 Agreement

4. C01 Samples of external materials

5. HO3 Visibility splays

6. H13 Access, turning area and parking

7. H29 Secure covered cycle parking provision

8. H30 Travel plans

9. L01 Foul/surface water drainage

10. L02 No surface water to connect to public system

1. L03 No drainage run-off to public system

12. GO04 Protection of trees/hedgerows that are to be retained

13. G11 Landscaping scheme — implementation

14. G14 Landscape management plan

15. No development shall take place until a Construction and Site Waste
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the provisions of the approved Plan.

16. F16 No new windows in specified elevation

17. 116 Restriction on hours of working

18. 141 Scheme of refuse storage (commercial)



19. 140 Details of flues or extractors

20. 151 Details of slab levels
Informative:
1. N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of PP/LBC/CAC

35. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The Planning Committee noted the date of the next meeting.
APPENDIX 1 - SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE UPDATES

The meeting ended at 10.50 am CHAIRMAN



PLANNING COMMITTEE
20 July 2011

Schedule of Committee Updates/Additional Representations

Note: The following schedule represents a summary of the additional
representations received following the publication of the agenda and
received up to midday on the day before the Committee meeting where they
raise new and relevant material planning considerations.

DMS/110995/F- Single storey extension to existing building comprising
kitchen & workshop and new addition comprising 32 bedrooms &
associated facilities at 48 Hampton Park Road, Hereford,
Herefordshire, HR1 1TH

For: Mr Claridge per Mr Ken Pearce, Mortimer House, Holmer Road,
Hereford, Herefordshire, HR4 9TA

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS

At paragraph 6.23 the report refers to the supply of Elderly Mentally Infirm bed spaces relative to
demand, which is forecast to increase.

Whilst the level of need has not been quantified, the Acting Director of Adult Social Care has confirmed
there is little capacity should there be a surge in admissions or a need to move large numbers of patients
due to serious incident/safeguarding concerns.

NO CHANGE TO RECOMMENDATION

Schedule of Committee Updates






AGENDA ITEM 6

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 10 AUGUST 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | APPEALS

CLASSIFICATION: Open

Wards Affected

Countywide

Purpose
To note the progress in respect of the following appeals.

Key Decision
This is not a key decision

Recommendation

That the report be noted

APPEALS RECEIVED

Application No. DMS/103011/F

The appeal was received on 11 July 2011

The appeal is made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a
refusal to grant planning permission

The appeal is brought by Mrs Mary Jones

The site is located at Winnal Common Farm, Winnal, Allensmore, Herefordshire, Herefordshire,
HR2 9BS

The development proposed is the proposed variation of condition 2 of planning permission
DMSW/101073/F

The appeal is to be heard by Written Representations

Case Officer: Mr A Prior on 01432 261932

Application No. DMN/110876/FH

The appeal was received on 12 July 2011

The appeal is made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a
refusal to grant planning permission

The appeal is brought by Mr J Kendrick

The site is located at Trout Beck, Mill Lane, Leintwardine, Herefordshire, Herefordshire, SY7 OLA
The development proposed is the demolition of existing single storey lean to and replace with two
storey extension

The appeal is to be heard by the Householder Procedure

Case Officer: Mr A Banks on 01432 383085

Further information on the subject of this report is available from the relevant case officer



Herefordshire
Council

APPEALS DETERMINED

Application No. DMN/103364/F

The appeal was received on 8 April 2011

The appeal was made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a
refusal to grant planning permission

The appeal was brought by Mr Julian Parry

The site is located at Land South of, 5 Stonehill Drive, Bromyard, Herefordshire, Herefordshire,
HR7 4BE

The application dated 28 December 2010 was refused on 23 February 2011

The development proposed was Proposed 3 bedroom bungalow with garage.

The main issues are:

i) Existing recreational open space; and
i) Open area and green space which provide an important amenity value
Decision: The application was refused under Delegated powers on 23 February 2011.

The appeal was Dismissed on 13 July 2011.

Case Officer: Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961

If members wish to see the full text of decision letters copies can be provided.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from the relevant case officer



AGENDA ITEM 7

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 10 AUGUST 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | DMS/111132/F - CHANGE OF USE OF LAND FROM

AGRICULTURAL TO A ONE FAMILY TRAVELLER
SITE INCLUDING SITING OF ONE MOBILE HOME,
TOURING CARAVAN, SHED AND NEW ACCESS AT
FIELD, THE LEYS, LYNNE DOWN, MUCH MARCLE,
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR8 2NS.

For: Mr John Lee, 2 Barnett Close, Ledbury,
Herefordshire, HR8 2LT.

Date Received: 3 May 2011 Ward: Old Gore Grid Ref: 364759,230885
Expiry Date: 28 June 2011
Local Member: Councillor BA Durkin

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Site Description and Proposal

The site is located within open countryside, in the parish of Yatton. The site is just over 9
kilometres from Ross-on Wye and Ledbury. It is 2.4 km south of Much Marcle, which is the
nearest defined settlement. The application comprises part of a 0.82 hectare field that is
bounded by the A449 on the north west, to the northeast by a minor road to Kempley and to
the east by a track. A public right of way (MM20) runs along this track. There are a small group
of dwellings to the north of the application site, including the grade Il listed Gamage
Farmhouse.

The application proposes the change of use of agricultural land to enable stationing a mobile
home, one touring caravan and a shed along the eastern boundary of the site. The application
is submitted on the basis that the use would be for a single family of travellers. The eastern
boundary adjoins the track and public right of way (MM20). An existing gated access on the
north eastern corner where it adjoins Kempley Lane will be closed off and a new access point,
serving an associated hardstanding area, would be created further north westwards along
Kempley Lane. This will entail translocating 14 metres of hedgerow back 2 metres into the
site. The existing hedgerow along Kempley Lane and towards the junction with the A449 road
will be maintained at a height of 4 metres. Levels within the application site reduce gently from
the boundary with the A449 towards the western boundary, where it is proposed to station the
mobile home, touring caravan and shed. The roadside boundary is partly demarcated by
hedgerow and metal railings at the northern end.

The application was accompanied by an ecological appraisal titled, ‘Great Crested Newt
survey of Gwynne’s Hill Pond and The Leys’. The presence of this protected species and the
failure to provide appropriate mitigation was a key factor resulting in an appeal being
dismissed on 5 October 2009. The siting for the structures within the site and the location of
the access further along Kempley Lane which form part of this current application have been

PF2

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932



revised in response to the Inspector's assessment of the application site and its elevated
position in relation to the A449 road and the Grade 2 listed Gamage Farmhouse and adjoining
buildings.

2, Policies

21 National Planning Guidance:

PPS1 - Delivering Sustainable Development

PPS3 - Housing

PPG7 - Sustainable Development in Rural Areas

PPS9 - Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
Circular 1/2006 Planning for Gypsy and Traveller Caravan Sites

Local Authorities and Gypsies and Travellers: A Guide to responsibilities and Powers, DCLG,
2007

2.2 Regional Guidance:
West Midlands Regional Spatial Strategy

2.3 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007:

S1 - Sustainable Development

DR1 - Design

DR2 - Land Use and Activity

DR3 - Movement

H7 - Housing in the Countryside Outside Settlements

H12 - Gypsy and Other Travellers

T8 - Road Hierarchy

LA2 - Landscape Character and Areas Least Resilient to Change

LAS - Protection of Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

LAG - Landscaping Schemes

NC1 - Biodiversity and Development

NC5 - European and Nationally Protected Species

NC6 - Biodiversity Action Plan Priority Habitats Species

NC7 - Compensation for Loss of Biodiversity

NC8 - Habitat Creation, Restoration and Enhancement

NC9 - Management of Features of the Landscape Important for Fauna and
Flora

2.4 Other Material Considerations:
Herefordshire Council Travellers’ Policy , 2008

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment, Shropshire, Herefordshire, Telford and
Wrekin and Powys revised final report July 2008

Planning for traveller sites: DCLG Consultation Document published April 2011
3. Planning History
3.1 DCSE2008/2384/F — Change of use of land to a one family traveller site, including the siting of

one mobile home, touring caravan, shed and a new access. — Appeal Dismissed — 5 October
2009.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932
PF2

10



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

DCSE2008/0719/F — Change of use of land to a one family traveller site, including the siting of
one mobile home and touring caravan — Refused — 12 May 2008.

Consultation Summary

Statutory Consultations

The Ramblers Association — no comments received.
Open Spaces Society — no comments received.

Internal Council Advice

The Transportation Manager recommends that conditions are attached providing visibility
along the lane.

The Conservation Manager (Conservation) raises no objections as regards the impact on the
setting of the listed buildings.

The Conservation Manager (Landscapes) — The application site comprises part of an open
grass field which is bounded to the north-east by Kempley Lane and to the east by a track. A
public right of way (MM20) runs along this track. There is a small group of dwellings, including
Gamage farmhouse, to the north of the site. The application site falls within the landscape
type described as Estate Farmlands in the Landscape Character Assessment. The site is
hedged on all of its boundaries, although the hedgerow on the A449 frontage is less
substantial. Part of the hedgerow along this frontage was missing but it is stated that
replacement hedgerow planting has been undertaken to fill this gap.

The proposal is to site the development in the eastern part of the field, with a new vehicular
access created off Kempley lane. Some measures have already been undertaken to improve
screening of the site. This includes allowing the existing boundary hedgerows to grow up and
also new planting.  This comprises the section of new hedgerow planting on the A449
frontage, as mentioned above and also a new cross-field deciduous hedgerow, to form a
compartment in the eastern part of the field (the application site) within which it is proposed to
site the development. New orchard tree planting is proposed for the western part of the field.
It is stated that the planting of new native tree species (Oak and Ash) is included in the
landscape proposals; however, this planting is not identified on the block plan.

With regard to the previous application (DCSE2008/2384/F), the proposed location of the new
vehicular access, to be approximately 20 metres in width, was opposite Gamage farmhouse.
In this application, the proposed location of the new access is further along Kempley Lane and
the proposed width of the access has been reduced to 11 metres. The intention is to
translocate hedgerow to form the visibility splay.

In relation to visual impact, there would be views into the site from the A449 and from the new
vehicular access on Kempley Lane. Views from footpath MM20 are restricted by boundary
hedgerow but it appears that the tops of the caravans may be visible. The development would
also be visible from some more distant vantage points on the higher land to the west of the
A449. However, in the longer distance views the proposed development would not be
prominent; it would be seen as a small element within the wider landscape.

The extension of development into open countryside would cause some harm to the rural
character of the landscape. However, if this site is acceptable in principle, | advise that the
mitigation measures that have already been undertaken, in combination with the proposed
mitigation measures and the reduction in width of the vehicular access will reduce the adverse
visual and landscape effects as far as can be achieved.

PF2

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932

11



4.6

4.7

It will take time for the mitigation to take effect — with regard to the new hedgerow and tree
planting, it will take at least five years for this planting to grow sufficiently to provide significant
screening and the development would be more prominent in winter months, when vegetation
is not in leaf.

In the longer term, as the new planting matures, it is acknowledged that the proposed
landscape scheme - the bolstering of existing hedgerows through gapping up, addition of
hedgerow trees and the planting of new native species hedgerow and orchard trees will
enhance the character of the landscape.

If permission is granted for this development, conditions GO02: Retention of trees and
hedgerows, G10: Landscaping scheme and G11: Implementation of landscaping scheme
should be attached.

It is essential that the landscape plan clearly indicates which hedgerows and trees are existing
and which are proposed (this is not clear on the submitted block plan). The location of the
proposed Oak and Ash trees needs to be shown. A full planting specification needs to be
provided for the hedgerow planting that has already been undertaken, the proposed
hedgerow, tree and orchard planting.

As stated previously, (memo dated 3™ April 2008) | recommend that Oak (Quercus robur) and
Ash (Fraxinus excelsior) trees should be planted at random intervals of between 10 — 15
metres, all the way around the perimeter hedgerows. These new hedgerow trees would help
to filter views of the development, particularly from the A449 and from the higher ground to the
west.

| recommend that the orchard planting should be in the form of a traditional ‘standard’ orchard,;
this comprises trees planted in a matrix. The orchard planting specification should include the
size of the trees and the rootstock. | can provide further technical advice on suitable planting
specifications, if required.

The Conservation Manager (Ecology) raises no objections subject to conditions controlling
staging of works and details for habitat enhancement being agreed. The additional
enhancement measures are welcomed but if these are not feasible close to the existing
breeding pond (outside of applicant’s control) there may be opportunities to create a small
pond in the northern corner of the application site. New hedgerow planting across the site will
result in an improved habitat connectivity.

Planning Policy Manager comments summarised as follows:

Herefordshire UDP:

A strategic objective of the UDP is to meet the housing need of communities throughout the
County (S3 — Housing). This approach is support by national planning guidance (PPS3 -
Housing). However in conjunction with this, Herefordshire Council seeks to promote
sustainable development and of particular relevance to the application is the need to conserve
and enhance the natural environment while respecting local distinctiveness and character.
Specific planning policy is provided on the delivery of Gypsy and Traveller accommodation in
UDP policy H12. The following paragraphs examine the criteria for Gypsy and Traveller
accommodation development.

e The site is within reasonable distance of local services and facilities: The site is 2.6km
from Much Marcle, which is identified within Herefordshire Council’s Rural Settlement
Hierarchy (November 2010) as containing 6 key day to day services. This identifies Much
Marcle as a sustainable rural location. It is recognised that within a rural setting the use of
private motorised transport is likely to be higher than within an urban context. Accordingly

PF2

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932

12



4.8

it is proposed that 5km is an accessible threshold within the emerging Local Development
Framework. As the site is within this distance, it is considered to be in reasonable
distance to local services and facilities. Notwithstanding that public transport is available
adjacent to the site to provide access to Much Marcle and wider settlements further
enhancing accessibility from the site.

e The site should be small: While the development proposals 1 mobile homes and 1 touring
caravan, the site itself is relatively large (0.82 ha as stated on the application form).
However, as highlighted on the submitted plans, planting in March 2011 provides a clear
boundary which clearly decreases the size of the site. Accordingly it is felt that the site is
of appropriate size for the proposed use.

e Adequate screening: These comments should be read in conjunction with the views of
Herefordshire Council’'s Conservation department. However, from the plans submitted,
the site is enclosed with new and existing vegetation to mitigate visual impact.

e Residential amenity: The site proposed appears sufficient to meet the needs of the
applicant.

Material Considerations: Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (July 2008)

The GTAA (July 2008) identified a need for 109 pitches for Gypsy and Traveller
accommodation by 2017 of which 83 are to be delivered by 2012.

Herefordshire Council’s Annual Monitoring Report 2009 — 2010 (published February 2011)
identifies that 27 pitches had been delivered. Since March 2010 a further 9 pitches have been
delivered reducing the need to 47.

Emerging Local Development Framework

Herefordshire Council’'s Core Strategy has been subject to consultation in January 2010
(Options paper) and Autumn 2010 (preferred options). It proposed that a second round of
preferred option consultation will be undertaken in September / October 2011. Accordingly
the core strategy is afforded limited weight due to the stage of progression. The preferred
option is seeking to meet the defined need of the GTAA and sites will be supported in
sustainable locations within 5km of settlements containing basic day-to-day needs. Site
specific issues relating Gypsy and Traveller accommodation will be examined within the
subsequent Market Towns and Rural Areas Plan.

To meet the defined need Herefordshire Council have undertaken a Call for Sites for land
parcels suitable for Gypsy and Traveller accommodation. 11 sites in total have been
submitted and are undergoing appraisal. Currently it would be premature to speculate how
many sites would come forward either now (i.e. in line with UDP policy) or within site specific
development plan documents. Notwithstanding this early indications are that there may be
sufficient sites from this source to meet the remainder of the 2012 need alongside an element
of the 2012 to 2017 need.

Conclusion

The comments above should be read in conjunction with comments received from other
departments including conservation who are able to provide technical knowledge on issues
around biodiversity, landscape and impacts upon the setting of statutory listed buildings.
However, in terms of planning policy the site appears to be in conformity with policy H12 and
the general housing and sustainability objectives of the UDP.

Public Rights of Way Manager has no objections.

PF2

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932

13



4.9

5.1

5.2

Environmental Health and Trading Standards Manager has no objections subject to details for
any external lighting.

Representations

Much Marcle Parish Council object to the planning application on the following summarised
grounds:

Adverse impact on landscape, not nullified by screening, given topography and
relationship to listed building.

Not within reasonable distance of services. Facilities 1.5 miles away along busy Class A
road (used by 2500 vehicles a day).

How can applicants integrate by integrating buildings with Gamage Farm complex? A 4
metres high hedge will preclude this.

Extending hedgerow on A449 road will obscure vision, hence the reason railings were
installed.

All applications should not be treated without preferential treatment to any particular
group, be it a minority of one or in the majority. i.e in line with Mr Pickles ’consultation
document.

Twenty four of letters of objection have been received from local residents. These are
summarised as follows:

Discount policies stated in Design & Access Statement.
Treat as is if dwelling in open countryside.

Loss of hedgerow, several hundred years old.

New hedgerow takes over 10 years to establish.

Allowing hedgerow to grow more than 4 metres high does not allow for clustering visually;
it isolates the site.

Affects vista along A449.

Affect views from Perrystone Hill.

Reduction in property values.

Loss of security.

Not sustainable use of land.

There are sites on A49 and on Walford Road

Applicants claim rights under Article 8 of Human Rights Act. What about our rights of
enjoyment/amenity and right to object?

Site occupied by Great Crested Newts.
Establishes precedent.

Car dependent. Lack of facilities only shop and Post Office in Much Marcle, which could
close at anytime.

Dangerous cross-roads.
Growing hedgerow along A449 will obstruct visibility.
Drainage issue. Will discharge onto A449.

Water connection is mine.

PF2

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932

14



5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

e Applicant is not homeless, has home in Ledbury.

The full text of these letters can be inspected at Planning Services, Garrick House, Widemarsh
Street, Hereford and prior to the Committee meeting.

Officer’s Appraisal

The application site lies in open countryside where residential development is strictly
controlled but in the context of this proposal for a single traveller family, the exception
identified in Policy H7(6) and more specifically the criteria based Policy H12 of the
Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan are the key considerations. In addition to the adopted
Development Plan policies, it is considered that the guidance set out in Circular 1/2006 and
the need identified in the Gypsy and Travellers Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) (July
2008) as the most up-to-date documents are key material considerations. Furthermore the
issues resulting in the refusal of the previous application and recent appeal decision relating to
this site has established a number of key principles that provide a focus for the detailed
appraisal set out below.

In terms of the broad principle of this proposal, the status of the applicant and his family as
Romani Gypsies falling within the definition of gypsies and travellers as set out in Circular
01/2006 is not questioned. As such the application is reasonably capable of being treated as
an exception in accordance with Policies H7 and H12 of the Herefordshire Unitary
Development Plan and by reference to the issues upon which the Inspector deliberated it is
considered that the following matters are key considerations in the determination of the
application:

(a) the proximity and accessibility of the site in relation to services and facilities;

(b) the effect on the character and appearance of the surrounding area;

(c) the effect on the setting of nearby listed buildings and;

(d) wildlife and nature conservation issues.

In addition to these key aspects that were identified by the Inspector in her consideration of
the previous appeal, there are a range of other material considerations that need to be
weighed up such as the shortfall of sites to meet the identified need for gypsy and travellers

sites and the personal circumstances of the applicant.

Proximity to services and facilities

It is evident that this was one of the key priorities arising in the determination to dismiss the
previous appeal. Policy H12, whilst permissive requires sites to be sustainable in terms of their
proximity to local services and facilities. The site is 2.4 km away from Much Marcle (a smaller
settlement) and given the lack of footpaths and highway verges in the locality it would not be
practical for users of the site to walk this distance. There is a bus route using the A449 road
passing the bottom of Kempley Lane, however this service is sporadic. The Inspector even
having regard to the pragmatic approach advocated by Circular 1/2006 considered that the
site was not a sustainable one and as such was contrary to Policies S1 and H12. There have
been no specific changes since the appeal decision that would make the site any more
sustainable. However | am mindful of the comments made by the Planning Policy Manager
with regard to the emerging policies of the Core Strategy which is suggestive of a 5 km
distance from defined settlements with day-to-day services being a reasonable threshold,
albeit in my view this emerging policy cannot be given any weight at this stage.

Effect on the character and appearance of the surrounding area

PF2

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932

15



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

It is considered that the main issues relate to the perception of the site when viewed against
the complex of buildings at Gamage Farm. The site is elevated in relation to the A449 road,
but could with the planting of hedgerow along the southern boundary of the site create a
relatively well screened compartment for this otherwise open field. This new hedgerow would
also assist in filtering views of the two caravans and shed. Furthermore the proposal
incorporates tree planting in the undeveloped part of the field that would in time enhance the
site in @ manner consistent with the character of the wider locality. It is understood from
representations received that the applicants have attempted to plant a boundary hedge, but
without success. This is a matter that can reasonably be made the subject of a planning
condition that would secure ongoing replanting in the event that specific plants fail to establish.
The revised siting provides a backdrop of hedgerow, but more importantly having regard to the
previously refused scheme, will result in the loss of hedgerow further up Kempley Lane and
away from Gamage farmhouse.

The development will have an impact but it is a localised one. | consider that the revised
proposal offers an improvement to the refused scheme and whilst the repositioning of the
caravans away from existing residential development (Gamage Farmhouse), | attach weight to
the Inspectors conclusions in relation to the appeal where she concluded that the previous
scheme was not result in an unacceptable degree of harm to the character and appearance of
the surrounding area.

Effect on setting of nearby listed buildings

The Inspector has previously concluded in relation to the earlier refused scheme that the
removal of hedgerow opposite Gamage Farmhouse to create a new driveway and the siting of
the caravans would reduce the visual intimacy of Kempley Lane and that the caravans would
not relate well to the existing group of dwellings (the farmhouse and converted stable building)
such that there would be conflict with Policy HBA4. The current proposal retains the hedgerow
opposite the farmhouse by creating a new access further up Kempley Lane diagonally
opposite a much wider access into Gamage Farm. The caravans are also sited further away
from Gamage Farmhouse. The Conservation Manager does not raise any concerns in relation
to the setting of the listed building and accordingly, it is considered that these two revisions
result in a scheme that satisfies the requirements of Policy HBA4.

Wildlife and nature conservation issues

The likely presence of Great Crested Newts (GCN) and the absence of an appropriate survey
incorporating mitigation was a fundamental flaw in the previous proposal This issue has been
subsequently addressed through the submission of a GCN survey. The survey identifies a
medium sized (potentially large) newt population in ponds within a 500 metres radius of the
site and these ponds benefit from likely hibernation habitats in closer proximity than the
application site and its associated hedgerows. Clearly whilst this does not rule out the
possibility that newts may use the application site for hibernation purposes the risk of this is
limited and would be mitigated by careful monitoring at the time of any works to the
hedgerows. It is recommended that additional enhancement measures in the form of the
creation of a pond in the northern corner of the applicant’s field should be undertaken if
attempts to provide mitigation closer to the existing ponds does not prove possible.

These measures together with the biodiversity benefits of the proposed orchard planting (a
Herefordshire Biodiversity Action Plan Priority Habitat) are supported by the Conservation
Manager and as such, subject to conditions, the proposal is in accordance with Policies NC1,
NC6, NC7, NC8 and NC9 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.

Other matters

PF2

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932

16



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

It is clear that the Inspector gave significant weight to the substantial unmet need for travellers
sites that has been identified through the GTAA and the particular accommodation needs of
the applicants. The needs of the applicant have not fundamentally changed and at the present
time there is a need to provide a further 49 pitches by 2012. These are factors that weigh in
favour of the application. However since the appeal the Council has undertaken a “Call for
Sites”, the result of which is that 11 sites have come forward and are currently undergoing
appraisal. Whilst the early indication is that these sites may be sufficient to meet the remainder
of the 2012 need and an element beyond this time, there is currently no certainty as to when
the sites would come forward and the actual locations are not in the public domain. Therefore
it considered that little weight can be attached to this presently.

The personal circumstances of the applicant and his family, whilst being a material
consideration can only be given limited weight and this was certainly not a decisive matter
during the consideration of the appeal. Neither was the likely interference to the Human Rights
of the family who, albeit currently living in accommodation that is not suitable for their needs
would not be deprived of their established home.

In light of the revised access arrangements, additional consideration has been given to the
new point of access and the associated visibility. The Traffic Manager raises no objection and
as such it is considered that the requirements of Policies DR3 and T8 are satisfied.

Conclusion

The application is locally sensitive and whilst the range of issues that must be taken into
consideration remain, the appeal decision has provided a clear framework upon which to focus
attention. It is maintained that the site is not sustainable in terms of its location in relation to
local services and facilities however the application has successfully addressed matters
relating to the setting of listed buildings and nature conservation, whilst maintaining an
acceptable localised impact upon the landscape character of the site and the surrounding
area. The unmet need for travellers’ sites must be given considerable weight and in view of
the limited progress that has been made towards bringing forward sites to meet this need, this
is considered to outweigh concerns in relation to the somewhat isolated location of the site.

6.14 Accordingly, | recommend the application for approval subject to conditions.

RECOMMENDATION

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

CO01 Time limit for commencement (full permission)
C06

The site shall not be occupied by persons other than gypsies and travellers as
defined in paragraph 15 of ODPM Circular 01/2006 or any subsequent superseding
publication.

Reason: The permission is granted in recognition of the exceptional circumstances
that apply to sites for gypsies and travellers that accord with Policy H12 of the
Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.

4. No more than one static caravan and one touring caravan shall be stationed on the
site at any one time
Reason: The local planning authority wish to control the specific use of the land in
the interest of local amenity and to comply with Policies DR2 and H12 of the
Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.

5. C88 Retention of trees and hedgerows

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932
PF2

17



C96 Landscaping scheme
C97 Landscaping scheme - implementation

No development shall take place until details of earthworks have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include
the existing contours and ground levels and the proposed grading of the land areas
including the contours and levels to be formed. Cross sections through the site of
the existing and propose levels must be included, to show the relationship of the
proposed grading to the surrounding landform and existing vegetation.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to protect the character and appearance of the area to ensure that
development conforms with Policies DR1, LA2, LA5 and HBA4 of the Herefordshire
Unitary Development Plan.

7. The use shall not take place until detailed plans identifying the position of the safe
play area for children and an area for work and storage on the site shall have been
submitted to in writing for approval by the Local Planning Authority. Development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: In order to comply with the requirements of Policy H12 of Herefordshire
Unitary Development Plan.

CC1 Details of floodlighting/external lighting

9. CD1 Nature Conservation - Implementation
10. CD2 Habitat Enhancement Scheme

1. CAC Visibility over frontage

12. CAB Visibility splays

13. CAD Access gates

14. CAG Access closure

15 CAH Driveway gradient

17. CAL Access, turning and parking

Informatives:

130

2. An appropriately qualified and experienced ecological clerk of works should be
appointed (or consultant engaged in that capacity) to oversee the ecological
mitigation work

3. N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of PP/LBC/CAC

(DI o <1 (0] o AR

Background Papers

Internal departmental consultation replies.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932
PF2

18



<
- 'q||| .
m,
o
)
_.."
o
Redlal
Pt
o
".;-.-
V4
\
—
:j_-'_d-
d-ﬂ___li d"".,
Bickerton]
C:nu;;te
ll.a’
{
i
' rl ]
Wy o- T
N’
i
B Py
W ). Pl Ty
Seatlphid ; f r}
Heuse ,.ﬁ Kt ’r I[ ;,.J\/ )
h - e b
Ch £ - . rP ‘\.\
'.II I..' _,_p"lll l‘:\.
Y AN
o™ \ it
This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made.
APPLICATION NO: DMS/111132/F
SITE ADDRESS : FIELD, THE LEYS, LYNNE DOWN, MUCH MARCLE, HEREFORDSHIRE, MUCH
MARCLE, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR8 2NS
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Herefordshire Council. Licence No: 100024168/2005

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932
PF2
19



20



	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 APPEALS
	7 DMS/111132/F - Field, The Leys, Lynne Down, Much Marcle, Herefordshire, HR8 2NS

